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Addendum 1 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

 

Healthcare Business Process Outsourcing  

Request for Proposals 

HBPO_ RFP_07022019 

 

The State of Connecticut Department of Social Services is issuing Addendum 1 to the Healthcare 

Business Process Outsourcing RFP (HBPO_RFP_07022019).  

Addendum 1 contains:  

 

 Revision of Section IV. I.5. Staffing Requirements – change is to section numbering only.  

 

 Questions submitted by interested parties and the official responses. These responses shall amend 

or clarify the requirements of the RFP.  

 

 Addendum Acknowledgment Sheet to be signed and returned by Respondents as per RFP Section 

I.D.7.  

 

In the event of an inconsistency between information provided in the RFP and information in 

these responses, the information in these responses shall control. 
 

 
 

 REVISION 

 
In response to Question #45 of this Addendum 1, Section IV.I.5. Staffing Requirements of 

the RFP has been revised to include consecutive numbering as follows: 

I.5. Staffing Requirements  
   

I.5.1. Staffing Model 

Describe the staffing approach including the intended mix of existing 
employees to new employees, the mix of fulltime employees to part-time 
employees, the use of permanent versus durational (temporary) staff, 
generalist operational staff versus specialized staff. Add other information 
that you believe is relevant and distinctive to your approach. 

Limit this response to 2 pages. 

I.5.2. Variable Staffing 

Provide the strategy for cost effectively handling the variable volume of the 
work while maintaining high quality. 

Limit this response to 2 pages. 
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I.5.3 Multi-lingual Support 

To fulfill some tasks or special projects it is sometimes necessary to make an 
outbound call to a consumer. How can/will the contractor staff provide 
Spanish and other language support for such occurrences? 

Limit this response to 1 page. 

I.5.4. Functional Organizational Chart 

Provide a visual organizational chart for this BPO unit. Include all levels in 
the hierarchy and distinguish different pools/types of workers. Provide 
accompanying text to explain (dotted) relationships and organizational 
structures. The chart should include person names when they are known, 
e.g. for key staff and others.  

I.5.5. Functional Role/Position Definitions 

Provide a table that fully describes the responsibility and scope of work for 
each role/position in the functional organizational chart.  

I.5.6. Staffing Levels 

The ongoing FTE headcounts are included in the Appendix P - Cost Budget 
Template and therefore in the Microsoft Excel spreadsheet of response 
Appendix K.4. 

These estimates are based on the current operations and an allowance for 
ongoing Special Projects.  

In this section confirm or otherwise whether the overall headcount 
allowance is reasonable, needs increasing or can be reduced. Provide a 
rationale for any recommended changes in the staffing levels.   

Limit this response to 3 pages. 

I.5.7. Program Management Office (PMO) Approach  

For proposal comparison purposes a dedicated PMO headcount is specified 
in the budget. This team is responsible for generating reports and setting up 
task-tracking databases.  

In this section the respondent should confirm or otherwise whether the PMO 
headcount allowance is reasonable, needs increasing or can be reduced.  

The respondent should make a statement that it will produce the reports 
and dashboards specified in the SOW and be flexible with respect to 
supporting the continued evolution of these reports and dashboards and will 
respond flexibly to reasonable requests for information. 

Provide an answer that is as specific to this RFP as possible and limit the use 
of “boiler plate” content.   

Limit this response to 2 pages. 
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I.5.8. Named Key Staff  

For each key staff position referenced in the Statement of Work provide a 
brief one or two paragraph biography. Include whether the individual is 
currently employed by the respondent or subcontractor.    

Include the resumes of key staff in response Appendix K2. 

I.5.9. Other Key Staff  

This is an optional section. 

If there are other known staff that the respondent believes are key to the 
success of their service operation describe the role and provide a brief one or 
two paragraph biography. Include whether the individual is currently 
employed by the respondent or subcontractor.    

Include the resumes of key staff in response Appendix K2.  

I.5.10. Letters of Commitment 

All named key staff who are not employed by the respondent or a 
subcontractor should provide a signed letter of commitment. This letter 
should state that the individual fully intends to work on this initiative should 
the respondent be awarded this procurement.   

This section should list such individuals. The letters of commitment should be 
included in response Appendix K3.  

I.5.11. Pre-Employment Screening 

Describe pre-employment screening practices. 

Limit this response to 2 pages. 

I.5.12. Retention Plan  

Describe strategies for minimizing staff turnover and to maintaining both a 
trained and an experienced team. Distinguish between common best-
practice HR approaches and specific (local) strategies to optimize the 
workforce for this service delivery. 

Limit this response to 3 pages. 

I.5.13. Ongoing Recruitment Plan  

Describe approaches to ongoing recruitment, i.e., post Transition. 

Limit this response to 3 pages. 

I.5.14. Corporate Training / Education / Development   

List any standard corporate training used for new hires or periodically during 
employment. Provide a short description of the training, its duration, 
delivery channel (WBT, classroom, etc.), and when initiated. 

Limit this response to 3 pages. 
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 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES 
 

1. Question: Would the department consider a proposal that digitizes the manual processes? 

 

Response: No. 

 

 

2. Question:  Can the specified 3-month transition timeframe be extended? 

 

Response: No. 

 

 

3. Question: Will the current reporting templates and analytics for business volumes and 

trends be made available to the selected vendor? 

 

Response: Yes. 

 

 

4. Question: Must the proposal address all three specified work streams?  Or can a proposal 

address individual work streams? 

 

Response: All work streams must be addressed. 

 

 

5. Question: Can two entities submit a joint proposal in which the parties deliver services on 

discrete work streams in collaboration? 

 

Response: No.  

 

 

6. Question:  What are the department’s initiatives for automation? 

 

Response: The requested information is not pertinent to this RFP.  
 

 

7. Question: The current contract is referenced in the RFP but is not available from the current 

state contracting website.  Is there a way to view the current contract? 

 

Response: Please see link below. 

https://biznet.ct.gov/SCP_Search/ContractDetail.aspx?ID=19873/ 

 

 

8. Question: Are there opportunities to work with DSS to create efficiencies that would be 

implemented in ImpaCT? 

 

Response: Please note that the primary system used by the HBPO Contractor is the 

Health Insurance Exchange (HIX) system which is a shared system with Access Health 

https://biznet.ct.gov/SCP_Search/ContractDetail.aspx?ID=19873
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CT and not ImpaCT. The HBPO Contractor will report any defects they discover in 

the HIX or ImpaCT systems and could provide recommendations for smaller changes 

that may provide efficiencies.   

 

 

9. Question: Is all data collected on the consumer portal automatically entered into ImpaCT or 

does it need to be re-keyed in? 

 

Response: Please note that the primary system used by the HBPO Contractor is the 

Health Insurance Exchange (HIX) system which is a shared system with Access Health 

CT and not ImpaCT. The HIX applications are real-time determinations whether they 

are over the phone, portal (accesshealthct.com), or entered by a professional user.  

 

 

10. Question: What percentage of applications come in through the consumer portal vs the 

number that are sent to ScanOptics. 

 

Response: There are very few paper Applications that are scanned into the HIX system 

for data entry.  Applications do not “come in through Consumer Portal” per se; the 

Consumer Portal is an integrated part of the system and data entered by the consumer 

is treated no differently than data entered by call center representative, a case worker, 

etc. These are all real-time integrated channels, adding data directly to a single 

database and providing real-time eligibility determinations. 

 

11. Question: Will there be an opportunity to have access to the ImpaCT reporting database to 

enable the creation of Ad-Hoc reports? 

 

Response: No.  Please note that the primary system used by the HBPO Contractor is 

the Health Insurance Exchange (HIX) system which is a shared system with Access 

Health CT and not ImpaCT.  The HBPO Contractor does not need direct access to 

system databases. 

 

 

12. Question: Will ImpaCT training be provided at no cost to the winning vendor?  Who will be 

providing it?  

 

Response: Please note that the primary system used by the HBPO Contractor is the 

HIX system which is a shared system with Access Health CT and not ImpaCT.   The 

HBPO Contractor will train their own staff. Please also review the response to 

Question # 26. 

 

13. Question: E.2 Cover sheet – Section IV L Forms does not provide a link to the Cover sheet 

Form. Please provide. 

 

Response: Please refer to Section 1. E. 2. Cover Sheet of the RFP.  You may also use 

the link as provided here, Cover Sheet, or use the form attached in the next page. 

https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/Departments-and-Agencies/DSS/DSS-RFPs/HBPO/CoverSheetHBPORFP07022019.docx
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COVER SHEET 
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

 
HBPO RFP_07022019 

Healthcare Business Process Outsourcing Request for Proposals 
 
 

            (   )   -     

Primary Business Name FEIN Telephone Number 

           ,          

Business Address Town, State Zip Code 

 
Contact Person (Individual who can provide additional information about the proposal or who has 
immediate responsibility for the proposal): 

            (   )   -     

Name Title Telephone Number 

           ,          

Street Address Town, State Zip Code 

      (   )   -     

E-mail Address Facsimile Number 
 
Authorized Official (Individual empowered to enter into and amend contractual instruments in the 
name and on behalf of the Contractor): 

            (   )   -     

Name Title Telephone Number 

           ,          

Street Address Town, State Zip Code 

      (   )   -     

E-mail Address Facsimile Number 

 

Signature 
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14. Question:  On the cost spreadsheet, the total number of FTE required for this contract is 

estimated at 61 FTE. Does the incumbent currently have 61 FTE performing this work? 

 

Response: The requested information is not pertinent to this RFP. 

 

15. Question: How should start-up costs be factored into the Cost Budget template? 

 

Response: The spreadsheet provided in Appendix P: Cost Budget Template of the RFP 

is for post-training period only. Please refer to Section IV. J.2. Transition Cost Budget 

of the RFP for start-up costs. Please also review the response to Question # 47.  

 

 

16. Question: Can employees perform any of this work via tele-work? Is this currently being 

done? 

 

Response: Tele-work is not envisioned.  Please refer to Appendix A. Statement of 

Work, sub-section O of the RFP which defines the requirements for the “Location, 

Facilities and Equipment” 

 

17. Question: Is there a page limit for the response? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section I. E. 5. Style Requirements and Section IV. Proposal 

Outline, 2
nd

 paragraph of the RFP.  

 

 

18. Question: A. Introduction. Do you have an anticipated budget for this initiative?  If so, what 

is it? 

 

Response: No. 

 

 

19. Question: A. Introduction. What has the spend been for similar services in previous fiscal 

years? 

 

Response: The requested information is not pertinent to this RFP. 

 

 

20. Question: F. Evaluation of Proposals. Section F, 4 indicates a maximum score of 5 points 

for subcontractor requirements.  However, there does not appear to be a requirement for the 

use of a specific type of subcontractor.  What determines if the 5 points for use of a 

subcontractor will be awarded to proposal responses? 
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Response: There is not a requirement to use Subcontractors. If no subcontractor was 

used then the respondent would receive the full set of points. 

 

21. Question: A. Introduction. Would you be open to SLAs with graduating metrics over a 6 – 

12- month period from the transition period? 

 

Response: No. 

 

22. Question: Section III. Contract Background. This RFP indicates that the operational work in 

this procurement is currently supported by Conduent but the contract with Conduent 

includes work beyond the scope of this procurement.  Are the services obtained through 

this procurement going to be used to supplement the current work being conducted by 

Conduent? 

 

Response: The requested information is not pertinent to this RFP. 

 

23. Question: Special Projects. The resulting contract from this RFP is set to begin October 1, 

2019.  Open enrollment is planned for November 1, 2019.  Considering the 3-month 

project establishment timeline, can the state confirm that the contractor awarded the 

operational work outlined in this RFP will begin on January 1, 2020? 

 

Response: Yes.  
 

 

24. Question: Statement of Work, Page 2, Section B item 5. Please clarify what is meant by 

“System and process training conducted by third parties” 

 

Response: There will sometimes be “train-the-trainer” type sessions accompanying a 

new software release. It’s possible, that there could be some other types of training that 

would require a training type session. The Contractor would want a (training) 

representative to attend these to understand the changes and create any targeted 

Contractor “task-based materials” (e.g., a briefing alert or a full supplemental training 

class) from the general system-update type materials.   

 

25. Question: Statement of Work, page 2, Section B item 5. How many Community of 

Experts (COE) meetings are held each quarter?  Are the meetings held at a single 

location within the state? 

 

Response: The COE used to occur frequently but are a now an ad-hoc occurrence since 

the HIX system and processes have stabilized. Meetings such as these will typically be 

hosted at a State/AHCT office in Hartford. 
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26. Question: Statement of Work, page 2, Section D. What is the anticipated length of 

training provided by the state to the contractor awarded this scope of work?  Will the 

contractor be expected to create all new training material or will the contractor be 

allowed to utilize and modify existing training material currently in use by the state 

agency? 

 

Response: The Department will not train the Contractor staff but will support a train-

the-trainer approach for the use of the system and an understanding of the Programs. 

The Department will also provide Process and Procedure Guides to the Contractor.  

The Contractor trainers can blend the State-provided system and program training 

materials (there is extensive such materials) with any new content to describe the tasks. 

The most recently refreshed training materials are from the HIX call center and a 

harvested subset of those training modules will provide a sound core to the system 

training. Additional modules can be added for the (FileNet) workflow screens. 

Appendix L: HIX/Tier-1 FileNet Document Ingestion Report – 2019-01-20 of the RFP 

includes some sample modules including the workflow screens.   

 

Not every person needs the same training depending on the tasks they are assigned 

(although over time it would be an advantage to cross-train individuals). For planning 

purposes, the Department would recommend allowing for an average of about 3-weeks 

of initial system and task training (this does not include any Contractor corporate 

training, HIPAA training, etc.).  

 

Works Streams 1 and 2 require HIX centric training and represent most of the work 

volume. Work Stream 3 requires basic ImpaCT training and Task 2 within this 

workstream requires knowledge of both systems.   

 

 

27. Question: Statement of Work, page 5, item 6. Will the Contractor be expected to attend 

appeal hearings? 

 

Response: This requirement is under review. It may be necessary for a Contractor 

representative to attend to support the Department, but they will not represent the 

Department.  

 

28. Question: Statement of Work, page 7, Item 2.  Is there an expectation that the Contractor 

will serve as a customer service representative for consumers who inquire about 

premiums or will the state submit such inquiries to the Contractor for research? 

 

Response: The Department will submit such inquiries to the Contractor for research. 

 

29. Question: Statement of Work, page 7, Item 2.(c).  What is the estimated number of 

invoices and correspondence the Contractor will be expected to resend to consumers?  

Is the anticipated method for the communication to be electronic or via United States 
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Postal Service?  Or, will the Contractor send communications to the preferred vendor 

described in section L on page 9 for processing? 

 

Response: The system supports resending communications. There are no outbound 

mailroom requirements. 

 

 

30. Question: Are all RFP submission materials sent to Ms. Ganesan? Does the CT BizNet 

portal support RFP submission document uploads? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section I.D.9. Proposal Due-Date and Time and I.E.7. 

Packaging and Labeling Requirements of the RFP.  

 

 

31. Question: Can Exela add our technology loop to interject automated data capture processes 

and reduce staffing levels without any change to CT DSS workflow? 

 

Response: No 

 

32. Question: What is the training model – training provided by CT DSS or Exela trains our 

own staff? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III.G.5. Training Support and Appendix A. III.D. 

Training Materials of the RFP and the response to Question # 26. 

 

33. Question: What is the duration of training for all three work streams and tasks?  

 

Response: Please refer to the response for Question # 26. 

 

34. Question: What is the volume of each work stream and task?  

 

Response: Please refer to Section III. M. Business Volumes and Trends, Appendix E: 

Daily Report – 2019-01-02, Appendix F: Weekly Dashboard – 2019-01-17, and 

Appendix G: HUSKY Health Business Analytics Dashboard – 2018-12 of the RFP.  
 

 

35. Question: What is the minimum billing guarantee for volumes less than 100%? What are the 

staffing requirements for volumes greater than 100%, this includes thresholds for overtime 

and expected turnaround times? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III. N. Compensation Model of the RFP.  
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36. Question: Can the CT DSS mainframe system generate reports or will all reports be 

completed manually? 

 

Response: Please note that the primary system used by the HBPO Contractor is the 

HIX system which is a shared system with Access Health CT.  Both the HIX and 

ImpaCT are hosted on Microsoft Windows servers. 

 

37. Question: What is the system/application availability: 24x7? Are there scheduled 

system/application maintenance periods?  

 

Response: Please refer to  Appendix A.  Statement of Work of the RFP for work-day 

requirements.  System maintenance is scheduled outside of normal work-day hours.   

 

38. Question: Are there SLA productivity incentives?  

   

Response: Please refer to Appendix A. Statement of Work of the RFP. 

 

39. Question: What is the maximum cumulative SLA penalty per month? 

 

 Response: Please refer to Appendix A. Statement of Work of the RFP. 

 

 

40. Question: What is the expected quality reporting frequency, such as: daily, weekly, 

monthly? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III.E.3. Work Tracking and Management Reporting 

and Appendix A. Statement of Work of the RFP.  

 

41. Question: What is the expected Productivity-Per-Hour (PPH) of each task and work stream? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III.N. Compensation Model of the RFP.  
 

 

42. Question: What are the expected Exela staffing ratios by Manger, Team Leader, Auditor, 

and Quality Assurance? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III.N. Compensation Model and Section IV. J. Cost 

Proposal of the RFP.  

 

 

43. Question: What is the connectivity pathway, such as: Remote Desktop Process (RDP), 

Virtual Private Network (VPN), Citrix? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III. G.7. Technical Solution Support of the RFP.. 
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44. Question: What are the system and network configuration requirements, such as: software 

versions, monitors, firewalls, server bandwidth? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section III. G.7. Technical Solution Support of the RFP. 

 

 

45. Question: RFP Section IV, I.5 Page 73. The numbering of sub sections in section IV. 

Proposal Outline, I.5. Staffing  Requirements, is not consecutive. Will the state please revise 

the numbering? 

 

Response: Please see Revision issued as part of this Addendum 1 on Page 1.  

 

 

46. Question: RFP Section F. IV. Page 12. Please clarify how the “monthly work stream costs” 

is determined and assessed as part of the cost proposal evaluation. This value is not provided 

in Appendix P - Cost Budget Template.   

 

Response: This is the total Cost-to-State from completed Appendix P: Cost Budget 

Template divided by the number of work months. 

 

 

47. Question: RFP Section IV J.2. – Transition Cost Budget. Page 77. Section C.2, SOW, 

acknowledges that there will be an amendment for the special provisions of the transition 

period. Please confirm that this amendment will include a Microsoft Excel template to 

use as Appendix K5 (Transition Cost Budget). 

 

Response: Respondents should develop and complete their own Microsoft Excel 

template, but may choose to model it after Appendix P: Cost Budget Template of the 

RFP.  

 

 

48. Question: RFP Section IV K.5 – Transition Cost Budget. Page 78. Please provide a 

template for this budget, or should Contractors create their own Microsoft Excel 

Appendix K5 template, similar to Attachment P? 

 

Response: Please refer to the response for Question # 47. 

 

 

49. Question: RFP Section V – Appendices. Page 79. The hyperlink for “Appendix C -Hearing 

Appeals Support PP Guide V2.0” led to an error page. Please provide a working hyperlink. 

 

Response: Please see link below. https://portal.ct.gov/DSS/Fiscal/Request-For-

Proposals---Quotations---Applications/HBPO-RFP-07022019--SECTION-V-

APPENDICES 

 

 

https://portal.ct.gov/DSS/Fiscal/Request-For-Proposals---Quotations---Applications/HBPO-RFP-07022019--SECTION-V-APPENDICES
https://portal.ct.gov/DSS/Fiscal/Request-For-Proposals---Quotations---Applications/HBPO-RFP-07022019--SECTION-V-APPENDICES
https://portal.ct.gov/DSS/Fiscal/Request-For-Proposals---Quotations---Applications/HBPO-RFP-07022019--SECTION-V-APPENDICES
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50. Question: SOW Section III B – General Expectations. Page 2. Please clarify the frequency 

of the COE meetings and confirm they are all held within the local Hartford area. 

 

Response: Please refer to the response for Question # 25. 

 

 

51. Question: RFP Section IV I.6.2 – Security. Page 75. Does the state consider HBPO and 

other HUSKY Health operations to be subject to the same CMS MARS-E 

requirements that apply to the Access Health CT health insurance exchange?  

 

Response: Yes 

 

 

52. Question: RFP Section III, G.4; IV I.6; e.g. Pages 38, 55. The RFP implies that the HBPO 

Contractor should provide its own email system and (presumably) use a non-government 

email domain for email communications. Will the state confirm this is the correct 

interpretation of the RFP and that the Contractor will not use a ct.gov domain to send 

or receive email? 

 

Response: The Contractor should use their own secure email system; they will not have 

ct.gov email addresses. 

 

 

53. Question: SOW IV. Pages 13-24. Please provide a list of SLA’s that have not been met 

during the past 2 years of the current contract. 

 

Response: The requested information is not pertinent to this RFP.  

 

 

54. Question: SOW IV. Pages 13-24. Please provide the dollar amount of SLA penalties that 

have been assessed during the past 2 years of the current contract. 

 

Response: The requested information is not pertinent to this RFP.  

 

 

55. Question: RFP Section M.5. Page 65. The volume for verifications has dropped 30% in the 

most recent operating years. Can the state provide the reason for this reduction in volume? 

 

Response: There are a lot of “moving parts” that affect the operations - system 

maturity, system stability, stability of the consumer-base, mix of applications versus 

renewals, results returned from third-party federal interfaces, stability/availability of 

third-party interfaces, etc.  There are a number of factors that had an effect and that 

compounded to produce the resulting change. 
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56. Question: RFP Section G.7.d. Page 40. To minimize business process disruption, does the 

State have a preferred email encryption software already in use for bidders to consider? 

 

Response: No.  

 

 

57. Question: Appendix A SOW Section III O Location, Facilities and Equipment. Page 11. 

Item 4 states, “All facilities and equipment needed by the Contractor are the responsibility of 

the Contractor. This includes, but is not limited to, personal computers, network equipment, 

office equipment, furniture and software.” Appendix P – Cost/Budget template indicates 

computer equipment, software and software licenses are pass throughs that are intentionally 

removed from the budget so different respondents do not apply different estimates.  Should 

the Contractor’s proposal reflect the assumption that we will be responsible for 

procuring and maintaining these items over the life of the contract? Or will the State 

provide direction on how to handle these costs as part of the transition? 

 

Response: The expectation is that the Contractor will be responsible for procuring and 

maintaining such items.  

 

 

58. Question: RFP Section J. page 58. The pregnancy income lock-in process describes a 

weekly file that must be completed in the first 15 days of the month. Please clarify this 

requirement as the due date does not align to a weekly work cycle. 

 

Response: Please refer to Appendix A. Statement of Work, Section VI. D. General 

SLAs for all Work Streams. 

 

 

59. Question: RFP Section J. Page 58. The past due pregnancy process describes a monthly file 

that must be completed during that week. Please clarify this requirement as the due date 

does not align to a monthly work cycle. 

 

Response: Please refer to Appendix A. Statement of Work, Section VI. D. General 

SLAs for all Work Streams. 

 

 

60. Question: Appendix P- Cost/Budget Template. Page 1. The instructions indicate, “Some of 

the lines are greyed-out, e.g., “Computer Equipment.” While there will be actual costs 

incurred and invoiced for the line items, they are removed from this version of the budget so 

that different respondents do not apply different estimates.” Please clarify how and when 

the Contractor will be reimbursed for these items since the Appendix A SOW Section 

III O Location, Facilities and Equipment states that many of these items are the 

responsibility of the Contractor. 

 

Response: The selected Contractor maybe required to report such costs at the 

discretion of the Department.  Please also review the response to Question # 57. 
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61. Question: RFP Section J. Page 58. For non-FileNet based work stream activities, what 

method does the State use to transmit weekly or monthly files (i.e., monthly past due 

pregnancy file)? 

 

Response: Files are added to directories on the State’s SFTP site.  

 

 

62. Question: Page 4. Section A.2. The RFP states that the “Start of Contract” is October 1, 

2019. Can the State confirm that October 1, 2019 is the start of the transition 

(implementation) period where a new vendor would begin setting up their operation?  

When would the State expect a new vendor to begin processing workstream tasks? We 

recommend commencing operations on February 1, 2020 to ensure that Open Enrollment 

has fully completed prior to shifting operations. 

 

Response: Please refer to Section I. 2. Summary and Section I.D.6. Procurement 

Schedule of the RFP. 

 

 

63. Question: Page 12. Section F.4.  If a vendor can successfully perform all services 

required under the contract without the use of a subcontractor, will they receive all 

five (5) evaluation points? 

 

Response: Yes. 

 

 

64. Question: Page 23. Section C.3. Can the State outline the number and type of special 

projects performed by the current vendor in the past 2 years? 

 

Response: Please refer to Appendix B: Sample List of Special Projects. 

 

 

65. Question: Pages 34; 39 – 40.  Sections. F.2.d; G.7.a; G.7.c. RFP Section F.2.d. ImpaCT 

states “Work Stream 3 has tasks that require using this system. In addition, the background 

research work related to Appeals (Work Stream 1 – Task 6) may require the confirmation of 

details within this system” while RFP Section  G.7.a states that “The State systems uses 

HTML web systems that are accessed via a web browser.” Please confirm that the State 

system (ImpaCT) is accessed via a web browser. If not, please provide method of 

access. What technology would a vendor use to access the system remotely? Will the 

State allow a network communication using an internet site secure VPN tunnel (per 

section G.7.c Connectivity) for accessing the state system? 

 

Response: ImpaCT, like the HIX, has a native HTML based interface. 
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Connection to the HIX or ImpaCT professional user interfaces (“worker portals”) 

should be over a secure VPN. 

 

 

66. Question: Page 57.  RFP Section J: Overview of Work Stream 2 states, “There are five tasks 

within this work stream: • Task 1: Age-Outs.  • Task 2: Pregnancy Income Lock-In.  • Task 

3: Past Due Pregnancy • Task 4: Special Projects.” Can the State confirm if there are only 4 

tasks (which were listed)? If there are 5 tasks, can the State please provide the 5th task? 

 

Response: There are four tasks. 

 

 

67. Question: Page 78. Section L.2. Can the State please verify the link to Form L.2 

Notification to Bidders?   

 

Response: Please see link below: 

https://www.ct.gov/chro/taxonomy/v4_taxonomy.asp?DLN=45583&amp;chroNav%09

=%7C45583%7C 

 

 

68. Question: Appendix P. Can the State provide historical staffing counts for the positions 

required to be priced in the Cost Budget Template: Appendix P? 

 

Response:  Planned staffing counts are included in Appendix P: Cost Budget Template 

of the RFP. 

 

 

69. Question: Appendix A. Pg. 2. III.B.4. Though there are no call center requirements, we will 

be required to make outbound calls.  Can the State provide the current outbound call 

volumes?  Do recipients call back, if so, what are the inbound call volumes? 

 

Response: The Department  does not have metrics for the number of outbound calls; 

we believe that the volume is minimal. The Department typically defines processes that 

avoid the need for any calls. But for some exception situations a call, if answered, can 

eliminate extended confusion and delays. Any return calls are directed to the AHCT 

call center (outside of this procurement) and the call representative would read the 

case notes to support the client. 

 

 

70. Question: I.F.4 Table 1, Page 12. See Table 1 under I.F.4. Please clarify that the 

references are part of the overall numeric score, or are they considered pass/fail? 

 

Response: A numeric score for references is included in the scoring for Response 

Section # I.3 in Table 1, Section 1.F.4. Evaluation Criteria (and Weights) of the RFP.  

 

71. Question: General Question.  Would the State please confirm that the final contract, 

including contractual terms and conditions, will be negotiated upon award? 

https://www.ct.gov/chro/taxonomy/v4_taxonomy.asp?DLN=45583&amp;chroNav%09=%7C45583%7C
https://www.ct.gov/chro/taxonomy/v4_taxonomy.asp?DLN=45583&amp;chroNav%09=%7C45583%7C
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Response: Please refer to Section II.A. Standard Contract, Parts 1 and II and Section 

II.D.6. Contract Negotiation of the RFP.  

 

 

72. Question: Appendix A – SOW. Page 11. Section O. Location, Facilities and Equipment: 

“All Tasks shall be performed at a single location (facility) in Connecticut. This location 

shall be less than a 20-minute drive from downtown Hartford, unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the Department”. Will the State entertain location options beyond a 20 minute 

drive from the Department’s main offices or consider a staff mix that includes both in 

state and out of state staff if those options could result in significant savings? 

 

Response: No.  Please refer to Appendix A: Statement of Work, Section III. O. 

Location, Facilities and Equipment of the RFP. 

 

 

73. Question: Section IV, Proposal Outline, I.4.2, Page 79. “Location of Proposed 

Facilities/Services”… If a facility has not been secured at the time of submission provide the 

target area and/or example facility.” Is there a preferred distance or proximity to DSS 

that the Contractor should secure space?   

 

Response: Please refer to Appendix A: Statement of Work, Section III. O. Location, 

Facilities and Equipment of the RFP. 

 

 

74. Question: Appendix A, D. General SLAs for all Work Streams Per Section D.0.1.3. 

“Minimize staff resignations”  Could the Department confirm that this SLA pertains to 

voluntary resignations only and that staff managed out of the organization for 

performance related issues would be exempt from this metric? 

 

Response: Yes. 

 

 

75. Question: Appendix A – SOW. Page 8. SOW Attachment A – I. Key Personnel. Industry 

experience is that this type of work requires a certain level of program knowledge and 

experience or a post high school education level in order to provide the level of service that 

the Department should expect.  Does the Department have any educational or experience 

expectations of staff performing the functions described in the work streams – such as 

the percentage of staff who are degreed or experienced? 

 

Response: No. 

 

 

76. Question: RFP Page 61 Section K.2 Task 2 K.1 Overview of Workstream 3 (Task 2 

Premium Billing Exception Support). b. Investigating consumer inquiries about premiums, 

service months, payments and processing. c. Resending invoices and correspondences as 
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requested. d. Upon consumer request, reviewing consumer accounts to validate credits and if 

necessary, initiating over-payment refunds.  In Work Stream 3, Task 2 (b), it references 

investigating consumer inquiries about premiums, service months, payments and premium 

invoicing. What is the method in which the consumer inquiries will be received? Will 

there be direct inquiries from the consumers by phone? 

 

Response: These will be referrals from call center(s) and not direct phone calls.  The 

referral mechanism may be as simple as an email. 

 

 

77. Question: SOW Page 3 Section F. Workstream 1: MAGI Data Entry Support 1a. The 

Contractor shall disposition the work items by processing the paper verifications and 

updating the HIX/Tier 1 system in accordance with the PPG for Manual Verification tasks 

within three (3) business days of the date a document appears in the data entry queue. For 

Work Stream 1, Task 1, what will be used to measure the verification document tasks 

are completed within (3) business days of the date a document appears in the data 

entry queue?  

 

Response: Information captured in the HIX system components will be used. 

 

 

78. Question: SOW-Page 12 Section V. Level Of Effort. A. Contractor shall provide ongoing 

forecasted work and staffing estimates for all Work Streams based on historical work 

volumes, observed trends, known system changes, and agreed processes. B. The Contractor 

shall materially operate at historic levels of person-task productivity. C. Should there be a 

material increase or decrease in forecasted work volumes, actual work volumes, or a 

material change in an agreed process, then at the Department's discretion the Contractor 

shall:  1. Increase or decrease assigned staff.   2. Implement voluntary or mandatory 

overtime.  The Level Of Effort (Section V) of the Statement of Work specifies in section C  

“should there be a material increase or decrease in forecasted work volumes, actual work 

volumes, or a material change in an agreed process, then at the Department’s discretion the 

Contractor shall take action. Can you define a “material change”?   

 

Response: A change that affects the volume of work received or the duration to process 

work that cannot reasonably be accommodated with the current staffing or results in 

an over-staffing situation. 

 

 

79. Question: SOW Page 3 Section F.  Workstream 1: MAGI Data Entry Support 1a. The 

Contractor shall disposition the work items by processing the paper verifications and 

updating the HIX/Tier 1 system in accordance with the PPG for Manual Verification tasks 

within three (3) business days of the date a document appears in the data entry queue.  Does 

the level of assessment required to perform Workstream 1, Task 1, as documented 

PPG, involve complex analytical abilities to accurately assess the many variations of 

Verification documents received? 
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Response: Please refer to Appendix C. Process and Procedure Guides and Appendix D. 

Quality Assurance Plan for Health Outsourcing of the RFP for task details.   

 

 

80. Question: RFP Page 23 Section C. Introduction to scope C. 3 Special Projects.  –  Each 

workstream is made up of several tasks and each work stream includes a task for Special 

Projects. “Special Project” is the term the Department uses to describe typically short-term 

in previously unplanned operational work that is aligned with the work stream but not been 

identified as a task. Special Projects are added via Change Order and typically address short-

term needs that are the result of changes in business processing, legislative actions, system 

issues, etc.  Does the level of assessment required to perform any of the Special Projects 

outlined across the Work Streams ever require an understanding of the history of the 

system functionality and processes in order to adequately complete the Special Projects 

and provide analysis and propose resolution? 

 

Response: No. The State defines and documents the processing approach and that 

would be enough to proceed with the execution of the project.  

 

However, the Department typically works collaboratively with the HBPO Contractor 

and will have initial discussions and answer questions. It is possible and permitted, but 

not a requirement, for the HBPO Contractor to suggest possible exception scenarios 

that the State might add to the documented process.   

 

 

81. Question: Section I – General Information, F. Evaluation of Proposals, 5. Respondent 

Selection, pg. 13.  5. Respondent Selection. Upon completing its evaluation of proposals, the 

Evaluation Team will submit the rankings of all proposals to the Department head. The final 

selection of a successful respondent is at the discretion of the Department head. Any 

respondent selected will be so notified and offered an opportunity to negotiate a contract 

with the Department. Such negotiations may, but will not automatically, result in a contract. 

Pursuant to Governor M. Jodi Rell’s Executive Order No. 3, any resulting contract will be 

posted on the State Contracting Portal. All unsuccessful respondents will be notified by e-

mail or U.S. mail, at the Department’s discretion, about the outcome of the evaluation and 

respondent selection process. Will DSS please confirm that submission of a proposal in 

response to this RFP does not constitute a binding offer (i.e., that a binding obligation 

only comes into effect when the two parties agree and sign a final contract)?  

 

Response: Please refer to Section II.B.4. Validity of Proposal of the RFP. 

 

 

82. Question: POS, Part II, D.6 (a). This Contract shall remain in full force and effect for the 

duration of its entire term or until such time as it is terminated earlier by either party or 

cancelled.  Either party may terminate this contract by providing at least sixty (60) days 

prior written notice pursuant to the Notice requirements of this Contract. Would DSS please 
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confirm that, in the event the DSS terminates the Agreement for convenience, the 

Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all services performed and products 

delivered under the Agreement through the effective date of the termination and 

reimbursement for all reasonable costs related to or incurred as a result of the 

termination plus a reasonable profit?  Additionally, in the event the parties cannot 

agree on the termination settlement amount, that DSS will promptly pay the 

Contractor the undisputed amount? 

 

Response: No. Payments will be made in accordance with governing state laws and 

contract terms. 

 

 

83. Question: POS, Part II. Would the DSS consider adding a reasonable limitation on 

Contractor’s liability including an overall cap on Contractor’s liability equal to the fees 

paid to Contractor by the DSS in the twenty four months preceding the claim for 

damages and a disclaimer of indirect and consequential damages?   

 

Response: No.  

 

 

84. Question: Appendix A, SOW, Section VI, Service Level Agreement (SLA) The Contractor 

shall staff and operate to meet or exceed service level agreements for the expected LOE. 

Would the DSS consider adding language to the RFP such that the total liquidated 

damages assessed against Contractor will not exceed ten percent (10%) of Contractor’s 

applicable monthly invoice? 

 

Response: No.  

 

 

85. Question: Appendix A, SOW, Section VI, Service Level Agreement (SLA) The Contractor 

shall staff and operate to meet or exceed service level agreements for the expected LOE. 

Would the DSS consider adding language to the RFP such that liquidated damages 

would not be assessed during a reasonable stabilization period of the first six (6) 

months following Go-Live? 

 

Response: No.  

 

 

86. Question: Appendix A, SOW, Section VI, Service Level Agreement (SLA) The Contractor 

shall staff and operate to meet or exceed service level agreements for the expected LOE. 

Would the DSS consider adding language to the RFP such that Contractor would have 

at least five (5) business days to cure any deficiency before the assessment of liquidated 

damages? 

 

Response: No.  
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87. Question: Appendix A, SOW, Section VI, Service Level Agreement (SLA) The Contractor 

shall staff and operate to meet or exceed service level agreements for the expected LOE. 

Would the DSS consider adding an earn back mechanism to the RFP such that 

Contractor would earn back any liquidated damage assessment if Contractor corrects 

the deficiency and meets the performance measure for two consecutive months 

following the month in which the failure originally occurred? 

 

Response: No 

 

 

88. Question: Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard Contract, Parts I and II. State of 

Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract, C. Contractor Obligations, 6. Related Party 

Transactions.  The Contractor shall report all related party transactions, as defined in this 

section, to the Agency on an annual basis in the appropriate fiscal report as specified in Part 

I of this Contract. “Related party” means a person or organization related through marriage, 

ability to control, ownership, family or business association.  Past exercise of influence or 

control need not be shown, only the potential or ability to directly or indirectly exercise 

influence or control. “Related party transactions” between a Contractor or Contractor Party 

and a related party include, but are not limited to:  (a) Real estate sales or leases;  (b)  leases 

for equipment, vehicles or household furnishings;  (c) Mortgages, loans and working capital 

loans; and  (d) Contracts for management, consultant and professional services as well as for 

materials, supplies and other services purchased by the Contractor or Contractor Party. 

Would the State please confirm that this section does not apply to the services being 

provided under this agreement?  

 

Response: Section II Mandatory Provisions, Part II.C.6. Related Party Transactions is 

applicable to this procurement. 

 

 

89. Question: Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard Contract, Parts I and II State of 

Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard 

Contract, Parts I and II State of Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract, C. Contractor 

Obligations, 11. Indemnification (a) The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the state of Connecticut and its officers, representatives, agents, servants, 

employees, successors and assigns from and against any and all:  (1) claims arising directly 

or indirectly, in connection with the Contract, including the acts of commission or omission 

(collectively the “Acts”) of the Contractor or Contractor Parties; and  (2)  liabilities, 

damages, losses, costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ and other 

professionals’ fees, arising, directly or indirectly, in connection with Claims, Acts or the 

Contract.  The Contractor shall use counsel reasonably acceptable to the State in carrying 

out its indemnification and hold-harmless obligations under this Contract.  The Contractor’s 

obligations under this section to indemnify, defend and hold harmless against Claims 

includes Claims concerning confidentiality of any part of or all of the bid or any records, and 
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intellectual property rights, other propriety rights of any person or entity, copyrighted or 

uncopyrighted compositions, secret processes, patented or unpatented inventions, articles or 

appliances furnished or used in the performance of the Contract.  (b) The Contractor shall 

reimburse the State for any and all damages to the real or personal property of the State 

caused by the Acts of the Contractor or any Contractor Parties.  The State shall give the 

Contractor reasonable notice of any such Claims. (c) The Contractor’s duties under this 

Section shall remain fully in effect and binding in accordance with the terms and conditions 

of the Contract, without being lessened or compromised in any way, even where the 

Contractor is alleged or is found to have merely contributed in part to the Acts giving rise to 

the Claims and/or where the State is alleged or is found to have contributed to the Acts 

giving rise to the Claims.  (d) The Contractor shall carry and maintain at all times during the 

term of the Contract, and during the time that any sections survive the term of the Contract, 

sufficient general liability insurance to satisfy its obligations under this Contract.  The 

Contractor shall name the State as an additional insured on the policy and shall provide a 

copy of the policy to the Agency prior to the effective date of the Contract.  The Contractor 

shall not begin performance until the delivery of the policy to the Agency.  (e) The rights 

provided in this section for the benefit of the State shall encompass the recovery of 

attorneys’ and other professionals’ fees expended in pursuing a Claim against a third party. 

(f) This section shall survive the Termination, Cancellation or Expiration of the Contract, 

and shall not be limited by reason of any insurance coverage.  Would the State consider 

amending the indemnification requirement to limit it to third-party claims for the 

negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the Contractor? 

 

Response: No.  

 

 

90. Question: Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard Contract, Parts I and II State of 

Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract, Section D.  Changes to the Contract, 

Termination, Cancellation and Expiration., I. Contract Amendment  (b) The Agency may 

amend this Contract to reduce the contracted amount of compensation if: (1) the total amount 

budgeted by the State for the operation of the Agency or Services provided under the 

program is reduced or made unavailable in any way; or  Would the State please consider 

amending this language to say: “The Governor or the Connecticut General Assembly 

rescinds, reallocates, or in any way reduces the total amount budgets for the operation 

of the Department during the fiscal year for which such funds are withheld? 

 

Response: No. 

 

 

91. Question: Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard Contract, Parts I and II State of 

Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract, Section D.  Changes to the Contract, 

Termination, Cancellation and Expiration, 1. Contract Amendment. (c) If the Agency 

decides to reduce the compensation, the Agency shall send written Notice to the Contractor.  

Within twenty (20) Days of the Contractor’s receipt of the Notice, the Contractor and the 
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Agency shall negotiate the implementation of the reduction of compensation unless the 

parties mutually agree that such negotiations would be futile.  If the parties fail to negotiate 

an implementation schedule, then the Agency may terminate the Contract effective no 

earlier than sixty (60) Days from the date that the Contractor receives written notification of 

Termination and the date that work under this Contract shall cease. Will the State confirm 

that if the contract is terminated under this section that the Contractor will be entitled 

to unamoritized costs, reasonable wind up fees, and payment for all services delivered 

or in process through the date of termination? 

 

Response: No. Please also review response to Question # 82. 

 

 

92. Question: Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard Contract, Parts I and II State of 

Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract, D. Changes to the contract, Termination, 

Cancellation, and Expiration, 3. Breach. (a)  If either party Breaches this Contract in any 

respect, the non-breaching party shall provide written notice of the Breach to the breaching 

party and afford the breaching party an opportunity to cure within ten (10) Days from the 

date that the breaching party receives the notice.  In the case of a Contractor Breach, the 

Agency may modify the ten (10) day cure period in the notice of Breach.  The right to cure 

period shall be extended if the non-breaching party is satisfied that the breaching party is 

making a good faith effort to cure, but the nature of the Breach is such that it cannot be 

cured within the right to cure period.  The Notice may include an effective Contract 

cancellation date if the Breach is not cured by the stated date and, unless otherwise modified 

by the non-breaching party in writing prior to the cancellation date, no further action shall be 

required of any party to effect the cancellation as of the stated date.  If the notice does not set 

forth an effective Contract cancellation date, then the non-breaching party may cancel the 

Contract by giving the breaching party no less than twenty four (24) hours’ prior written 

Notice after the expiration of the cure period. Would the State please consider amending 

the notice and cure period to no less than thirty (30) days?  Will the State confirm that 

in the event of a termination under this section the Contractor will be paid the fair 

compensation for satisfactory work performed prior to receipt of notice of termination 

less the amount of damages caused by Contractor’s breach? 

 

Response: No. Please also review response to Question # 82. 

 

 

93. Question: Section II Mandatory Provisions, A. Standard Contract, Parts I and II. State of 

Connecticut Purchase of Service Contract, D. Changes to the contract, Termination, 

Cancellation, and Expiration, 6. Ending the Contractual Relationship. (b)  The Agency may 

immediately terminate the Contract in whole or in part whenever the Agency makes a 

determination that such termination is in the best interest of the State. Notwithstanding 

Section D.2, the Agency may immediately terminate or cancel this Contract in the event that 

the Contractor or any subcontractors becomes financially unstable to the point of threatening 

its ability to conduct the services required under this Contract, ceases to conduct business in 
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the normal course, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, suffers or permits 

the appointment of a receiver for its business or its assets. Will the State confirm that 

prior to terminating the contract for reasons within the best interest of the State that 

the State will provide adequate prior written notice of that termination, of no less than 

sixty days, to the Contractor and that the Contractor will be entitled to unamoritized 

costs, reasonable wind up fees, and payment for all services delivered or in process 

through the date of termination? 

 

Response: No. Please also review response to Question # 82. 

 

 

94. Question: I.E.5, page 11 Dividers: A tab sheet keyed to the table of contents must 

separate each subsection of the proposal; the title of each subsection must appear on the tab 

sheet. Can tabs be used only at  1st and 2nd level  (i.e., I. and I.1), instead of 3rd level 

tabs at every subsection, such as I.1.1., I.1.2, I.1.3, as outlined in RFP Section IV, pg 68 

 

Response: Please refer to  RFP, Section I.E.5. Style Requirements: “Dividers: A tab 

sheet keyed to the table of contents must separate each subsection of the proposal; the 

title of each subsection must appear on the tab sheet”. 

 

 

95. Question: I.E.5 Style Requirements. Page 10. The electronic copies of the proposal must be 

compatible with Microsoft Office Word except for the Ongoing Cost Budget and Transition 

Cost Budget, which must be compatible with Microsoft Office Excel.  For the electronic 

copy, only the   required  appendices  and  forms  may  be  scanned  and  submitted  in  

Portable Document Format (PDF) or similar file format. Is it permissible for Bidders to 

submit documents not available in Microsoft Office format in Adobe PDF format only 

(e.g., audited financial statements, insurance documentation, etc.)? 

 

Response: Please refer to  RFP, Section I. D. 9. Proposal Due-Date and Time: “The 

electronic copies of the proposal must be compatible with Microsoft Office Word except 

for the Ongoing Cost Budget and Transition Cost Budget, which must be compatible 

with Microsoft Office Excel. For the electronic copy, only the required appendices and 

forms may be scanned and submitted in Portable Document Format (PDF) or similar 

file format”. 

 

 

96. Question: I.E.5 Style Requirements. Page 11. Font Size: Generally a minimum of 11-point.  

Font Type: Arial or Tahoma. The RFP requires Bidders to respond using minimum 11-point 

font (Arial or Tahoma). May Bidders use a smaller, still readable font for the following: 

headers and footers, requirement text, exhibits, and tables? 

 

Response: Please refer to RFP, Section I.E.5. Style Requirements: “Font Size: 

Generally a minimum of 11-point”. 
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97. Question: I.E.5. Style Requirements. Page 11. Font Size: Generally a minimum of 11-point. 

Font Type: Arial or Tahoma. Several requested documents/samples do not comply with 

font restrictions and they are not available in a native MS Office format for font 

adjustments. Please confirm that it is permissible to submit those documents as is. 

 

Response: Please refer to  RFP, Section I.E.5. Style Requirements: “Font Size: 

Generally a minimum of 11-point”. 

 

 

98. Question: I.E.5 Style Requirements. Page 11, 6. Pagination. The respondent’s name must 

be displayed in the header of each page. All pages, from the Cover Sheet through the 

required Appendices and Forms, must be numbered consecutively in the footer. Can 

Bidders number the pages by major section (i.e., A-1, B-1)? Meaning, page numbers 

within a section (i.e. A.1; B.1 – B.8, C.1 – C-7; I.1- I.58) are allowable versus 

consecutively from beginning (Section A) to the end (Section L)? 

 

Response: No. Please refer to RFP, Section I.E.6. Pagination: “The respondent’s name 

must be displayed in each page. All pages, from the Cover Sheet through the required 

Appendices and Forms, must be numbered consecutively”. 

 

 

99. Question: I.E.6 Style Requirements. Page 11. 6. Pagination. The respondent’s name must 

be displayed in the header of each page. All pages, from the Cover Sheet through the 

required Appendices and Forms, must be numbered consecutively in the footer. Can 

Bidders exclude signed forms, attachments, tables of content, etc. from the sequential 

numbering requirement? 

 

Response: No. Please refer to RFP, Section I.E.6. Pagination: “The respondent’s name 

must be displayed in each page. All pages, from the Cover Sheet through the required 

Appendices and Forms, must be numbered consecutively”. 

 

 

100. Question: I.E.6 Style Requirements. Page 11. 6. Pagination. The respondent’s name must 

be displayed in the header of each page. All pages, from the Cover Sheet through the 

required Appendices and Forms, must be numbered consecutively in the footer. We will be 

submitting some pre-existing documents (e.g., financial reports) that have existing 

page numbering and some pages may not be numbered. Because these are long and 

complex documents, may we leave them unaltered? 

 

Response: Please refer to RFP, Section I.E.6. Pagination: “The respondent’s name 

must be displayed in each page. All pages, from the Cover Sheet through the required 

Appendices and Forms, must be numbered consecutively”. 

 

 

101. Question: I.D.11, pg 10 and IV.C pg 72. Claim of Exemption from Disclosure. 

Respondents are advised that all materials associated with this request, procurement or 
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contract are subject to the terms of the Freedom of Information Act, Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 1-

200 et seq. (FOIA). Although there are exemptions in the FOIA, they are permissive and 

not required. If a Respondent believes that certain information or documents or portions of 

documents required by this request, procurement, or contract is exempt from disclosure 

under the FOIA, the Respondent must mark such information or documents or portions of 

documents as EXEMPT. In Section C. of its submission, the Respondent must indicate the 

documents or pages where the information labeled EXEMPT is located in the proposal. . 

For information or documents so referenced, the Respondent must provide a detailed 

explanation of the basis for the claim of exemption. Specifically, the Respondent must cite 

to the FOIA exemption that it is asserting as the basis for claim that the marked material is 

exempt. In addition, the Respondent must apply the language of the statutory exemption to 

the information or documents or portions of documents that the Respondent is seeking to 

protect from disclosure. For example, if a Respondent marks a document as a trade secret, 

the Respondent must parse the definition in Section 1 210(b)(5)(A) and show how all of the 

factors are met. Notwithstanding this requirement, DSS shall ultimately decide whether 

such information or documents are exempt from disclosure under the FOIA. Does the State 

require a complete Redacted volume or is marking proprietary content as EXEMPT 

within the proposal and providing a Table, in Section C, indicating where information 

labeled EXEMPT is located, with justification of why we deem it exempt, in our 

proposal sufficient? 

 

Response: Please refer to Section I. D.11. Claim of Exemption from Disclosure 

of the RFP. 
 

 

102. Question: Appendix P – Cost Budget Template. Line 20 Col M, S, Y, AE. Direct Data 

Center Costs. Should shared resources and other corporate costs associated with 

corporate network, systems, and data center operations be included in direct data 

center costs or broken out as separate line items. 

 

Response: The Department would prefer greater detail and therefore separate line 

items are preferred.  
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